
FINANCE  
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 
 

Called by:  John Butitta, Chairman DATE: THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2023 
Members:  Jean Crosby, Joe 
Hoffman, Keith McDonald, Jaime 
Salgado, John F. Sweeney, 

TIME: IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE MEETING AT 5:30 PM 

Michael Thompson  
 
 
 
 
AGENDA: 

LOCATION:   ROOM 303 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call  

C. Approval of October 12 and 19, 2023 Minutes        

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Finance Committee with 
issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three minutes.  Personal attacks or 
inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five 
speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning 
matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  
Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An 
individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This 
prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to 
be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and state your name.   

E. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Year End Adjustments 

F. Ordinance for a Budget Amendment Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board 
(ILETSB) Grant Award 

G. Resolution Approving Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding Allocation Policy 

H. Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor’s 
Program 

I. Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation 

J. Other Matters 

K. Adjournment 

 



Page 1 

Winnebago County Board 
Special Finance Committee Meeting 

County Courthouse 
Conference Room 815, Behind County Board Room 

400 West State Street 
Rockford, IL 61101 

Thursday, October 12, 2023 
5:30 PM 

Present: Others Present: 
John Butitta, Chairperson 
Jaime Salgado, Vice Chairperson 
Jean Crosby 
Joe Hoffman 
Keith McDonald 
John F. Sweeney 
Michael Thompson 

Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 
Steve Schultz, Chief Financial Officer 
Lafakeria Vaughn, Civil Bureau Chief, State’s Attorney’s Office 
Chris Scrol, County Board Member 
Mark Galasso, Attorney-Tribler Orpett & Meyer P.C. 
Rick Ciganek, Sheriff’s Office 

AGENDA: 
A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of August 17 and 31, 2023 Minutes
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Finance

Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three
minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.
We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the
meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the
ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or
threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak
a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition
shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to
be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the Chairman, please stand and state
your name.  Thank you.

E. Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation
F. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Pending Litigation (Claudis A. Lambert et al.

v. Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office et al.)
G. Other Matters
H. Adjournment

Call to Order 
Chairperson Butitta called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

Roll Call 
Chairperson Butitta yes, Ms. Crosby yes, Mr. Hoffman yes, Mr. McDonald yes, Mr. Salgado 
yes, Mr. Sweeney yes, Mr. Thompson yes. 

Approval of August 17 and 31, 2023 Minutes 
Chairperson Butitta called for a motion to approve the August 17 and 31, 2023 Minutes. 
Motion: Mr. Thompson.  Second: Mr. Hoffman. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 



Page 2 

Public Comment 
Chairperson Butitta omitted reading the Public Comment Section of the Agenda due to no 
one present to speak. 

Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation 
Chairperson Butitta called for a motion to enter Closed Session. 
Motion: Mr. Thompson.  Second: Mr. Hoffman. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Roll Call: Chairperson Butitta yes, Ms. Crosby yes, Mr. Hoffman yes, Mr. McDonald yes, 
Mr. Salgado yes, Mr. Sweeney yes, Mr. Thompson yes. 

Chairperson Butitta – No action was taken in Closed Session. 

Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Pending Litigation (Claudis A. Lambert et al. v. 
Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office et al.) 
Motion: Chairperson Butitta.  Second: Ms. Crosby. 
Chairperson Butitta called for any other questions or comments. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Other Matters 
None reported. 

Adjournment 
Chairperson Butitta called for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion: Mr. Thompson.  Second: Mr. Hoffman. 
Motion to adjourn passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nancy Bleile 
Administrative Assistant 



Page 1 

Winnebago County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting 
County Administration Building 

404 Elm Street, Room 303 
Rockford, IL 61101 

Thursday, October 19, 2023 
Immediately following the Operations & Administrative Committee Meeting 

Present: Others Present: 
John Butitta, Chairperson 
Jaime Salgado, Vice Chairperson 
Joe Hoffman 
Keith McDonald 
John F. Sweeney 

Absent: 
Jean Crosby 
Michael Thompson 

Patrick Thompson, County Administrator 
Steve Schultz, Chief Financial Officer 
Lafakeria Vaughn, Civil Bureau Chief, State’s Attorney’s Office 
Paul Arena, County Board Member 
John Giliberti, State’s Attorney 
Deanna Severson, Purchasing Specialist 
Chris Petrus, IT Department 
Mike Huffman, Huffman Keel Partners, Inc. 

Guest – Public Speaker 
Therasa Yehling, OSF St. Anthony Medical Center, STRIVE 

AGENDA: 
A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of September 21, 2023 Minutes
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Finance

Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three
minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.
We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the
meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the
ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or
threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak
a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition
shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to
be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the Chairman, please stand and state
your name.  Thank you.

E. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the
General Fund

F. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the IMRF
Fund

G. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the County
Highway Fund

H. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the County
Bridge Fund

I. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Federal
Aid Matching Fund

J. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Health
Department Fund

K. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Tort
Judgment and Liability Fund

L. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Social



Page 2 

Security Fund 
M. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the

Veterans Assistance Fund
N. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the

Detention Home Fund
O. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the

Historical Museum Fund
P. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the

Nursing Home Operations Fund
Q. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the

Children’s Advocacy Fund
R. Ordinance for Budget Amendment PSN23 Grant Award
S. Resolution Approving Amendment to Grant Policy in the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget

Policy
T. Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation
U. Other Matters
V. Adjournment

Call to Order 
Chairperson Butitta called the meeting to order at 6:45 PM. 

Roll Call 
Chairperson Butitta yes, Mr. Hoffman yes, Mr. McDonald yes, Mr. Salgado yes, Mr. 
Sweeney yes. 

Approval of September 21, 2023 Minutes 
Chairperson Butitta called for a motion to approve the September 21, 2023 Minutes. 
Motion: Chairman Butitta.  Second: Mr. McDonald. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Public Comment 
Chairperson Butitta read the Public Comment Section of the Agenda. 

Chairperson Butitta introduced Therasa Yehling, OSF St. Anthony Medical Center, STRIVE 
Trauma Recovery Center.  Ms. Yehling gave some background information on STRIVE 
Trauma Recovery Center.  Ms. Yehling advised the Center has previously benefited from a 
grant.  Due to the inability to acquire funding, the center is unable to provide services after 
December 2023.  Ms. Yehling respectfully asked the Finance Committee to amend the 
Mental Health Board budget.  Chairperson Butitta will contact Ms. Yehling to discuss the 
concerns brought before the Finance Committee at today’s meeting.  Ms. Yehling exited the 
meeting. 

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the General 
Fund 

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the IMRF 
Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the County 
Highway Fund  



Page 3 

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the County 
Bridge Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Federal 
Aid Matching Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Health 
Department Fund 

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Tort 
Judgment and Liability Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Social 
Security Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Veterans 
Assistance Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Detention 
Home Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Historical 
Museum Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Nursing 
Home Operations Fund  

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2024 for the Children’s 
Advocacy Fund  

Motion: Chairperson Butitta made the motion to approve Ordinances Items E. through Q. 
Second: Mr. Sweeney. 
Chairperson Butitta called for any discussion. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Ordinance for Budget Amendment PSN23 Grant Award 
Motion: Chairperson Butitta.  Second: Mr. Hoffman. 
Chairperson Butitta called for any discussion. 

Resolution Approving Amendment to Grant Policy in the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget 
Policy 
Motion: Chairperson Butitta.  Second: Mr. Salgado. 
Chairperson Butitta called for any discussion 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation 
Chairperson Butitta called for a motion to enter Closed Session. 
Motion: Mr. Butitta.  Second: Mr. Salgado. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Roll Call: Chairperson Butitta yes, Mr. Hoffman yes, Mr. McDonald yes, Mr. Salgado yes, 



Page 4 

Mr. Sweeney yes. 

Chairperson Butitta – No action was taken in Closed Session. 

Other Matters 
None reported. 

Adjournment 
Chairperson Butitta called for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion: Mr. Hoffman.  Second: Mr. Salgado. 
Motion to adjourn passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nancy Bleile 
Administrative Assistant 



Ordinance Executive Summary
 

Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    November 16, 2023 

Ordinance Title:   Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Year End Adjustments 

Board Meeting Date:    November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No  Appropriation Amount:   See Attached 

If not, explain funding source:  See Attached details 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Various 

FY2023 Budget Impact: Varies by Fund 

Background Information:  The Winnebago County fiscal year ended as of September 30, 2023. Accounting 
entries are made through the end of December for revenues and expenses that relate to activity occurring 
in the prior fiscal year.  Upon review of accounts at the beginning of November, certain revenues and 
expenditures have exceeded budgeted amounts.  Details are included in the attached documentation and 
vary by fund.  

Recommendation:    Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement:   Not applicable 

Legal Review:   Not applicable 

Follow-Up:   Not applicable 



1 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance:    November 16, 2023 
Lay Over: November 30, 2023 

Sponsored by: Final Vote: December 14, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2023 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 and recommends 
its adoption. 

Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Year End Adjustments 

WHEREAS, Winnebago County’s fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 and activity 
related to this time period is required to be recorded in that appropriate period per generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Certain revenues and expenses have exceeded budgeted 
amounts.  This amendment will update the budget to reflect actual activity and, 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 2022 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #23-042 Year End Amendment. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

  JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 
JOSEPH CHIARELLI 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



11/16/2023

Various Steve Schultz

0001 General Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

11000 41110 Auditor ‐ Salary $178,266 $0 $178,266 $3,719 $181,985

11000 43941 Auditor ‐ Dues & Memberships $920 $0 $920 $989 $1,909

11500 41110 City Election ‐ Regular Salaries $139,038 $0 $139,038 $2,188 $141,226

11500 41120 City Election ‐ Temporary Salaries $0 $0 $0 $9,930 $9,930

12503 41110 County Board ‐ Regular Salaries $170,000 $0 $170,000 $18,000 $188,000

12503 43941 County Board ‐ Cell Phone $0 $0 $0 $418 $418

12503 43310 County Board ‐ Travel $0 $0 $0 $710 $710

12503 43410 County Board ‐ Printing $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000

12503 43941 County Board ‐ Dues & Memberships $11,000 $0 $11,000 $272 $11,272

12503 44140 County Board ‐ Print Svcs $0 $0 $0 $720 $720

18000 43110 Finance ‐ Auditing $160,000 $0 $160,000 $19,725 $179,725

27000 44230 PSB ‐ Space Allocation $484,011 $0 $484,011 $68,750 $552,761

31000 44130 State's Atty ‐ Copier Chargeback $40,000 $0 $40,000 $2,200 $42,200

Revenue

$128,621

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $128,621

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

Increase budget for various expenses based on year end actuals for the General Fund.

2023‐042A

VariousDEPT. BUDGET NO.



11/16/2023

40200 Steve Schultz

0102 Marriage & Civil Union Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

40200 42290 Marriage Fund ‐ Other Dept Supplies $4,000 $0 $4,000 $1,367 $5,367

Revenue

40200 39210 Marriage Fund ‐ Interest ($1) $0 ($1) (245)                         ($246)

40200 39990 Marriage Fund ‐ Other Svcs ($5,000) $0 ($5,000) (180)                         ($5,180)

$942

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available Fund Balance

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042B

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 40200‐Marriage & Civil Union

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for various expenses based on year end actuals for the Marriage & Civil Union Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $942



11/16/2023

40700 Steve Schultz

0107 Court Automation Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

40700 43190 Court Automation Fee‐Other Prof Svc $310,000 $0 $310,000 $6,821 $316,821

Revenue

40700 34120 Court Automation Fee‐Doc Filing Fee ($310,000) $0 ($310,000) ($6,821) ($316,821)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in 2023

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042C

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 40700‐Court Automation Fee

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Court Automation Fee Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

40700 Steve Schultz

0108 Court Security Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

40800 49110 Court Security Fee‐Txfrs to Other Funds $675,000 $0 $675,000 $50,908 $725,908

Revenue

40800 34120 Court Security Fee‐Document Filing Fee ($675,000) $0 ($675,000) ($50,908) ($725,908)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in 2023

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042D

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 40800‐Court Security Fee

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Court Security Fee Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

41700 Steve Schultz

0116 Host Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

41700 49110 Host Fee‐Transfer to Other Funds $1,389,050 $0 $1,389,050 $1,000,000 $2,389,050

Revenue

$0 $0 $0

$1,000,000

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042E

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 41700‐Host Fee Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for FY22 transfer to highway fund that was not previously recorded.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $1,000,000



11/16/2023

42600 Steve Schultz

0126 Law Library Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

42600 41110 Law Library‐Regular Salaries $61,600 $0 $61,600 $12,584 $74,184

42600 42120 Law Library‐Book, Periodicals $70,000 $70,000 ($6,720) $63,280

Revenue

42600 34290 Law Library‐Misc Fees ($188,000) $0 ($188,000) ($5,864) ($193,864)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in FY23

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042F

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 42600‐Law Library Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Law Library Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

46100 Steve Schultz

0161 County Highway Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

46100 49110 Highway‐Transfer to Other Funds $0 $0 $0 $64,750 $64,750

46400 49110 MFT‐Transfer to Other Funds $200,500 $0 $200,500 ($64,750) $135,750

Revenue

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in FY23

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042G

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 46100‐Highway Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on changes implemented based on IDOT MFT audit.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

48500 / 48510 Steve Schultz

0185 Health Ins Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

48500 43150 Health Insurance ‐ Medical Expense $15,810,500 $0 $15,810,500 $575,000 $16,385,500

48510 42112 Wellness Ctr ‐ Equipment $0 $0 $0 $3,379 $3,379

48510 43175 Wellness Ctr ‐ Wellness Contract $0 $0 $0 $13,012 $13,012

Revenue

$591,391

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042H

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 48500/48510 Health Ins/Wellness

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses due to increases in medical expenses.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $591,391



11/16/2023

61000 Steve Schultz

0310 City Election Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

61000 43932 City Election ‐ Other Programs $975,000 $0 $975,000 $25,000 $1,000,000

Revenue

61000 31110 City Election ‐ Real Estate Taxes ($975,000) $0 ($975,000) ($25,000) ($1,000,000)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042I

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 61000 City Election

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget due to actual EAV based calculation exceeds budget

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

61200 Steve Schultz

0312 ERAP 2

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

61200 43190 ERAP 2 ‐ Other Prof Services $0 $0 $0 $41,533 $41,533

61200 41110 ERAP 2 ‐ Regular Salaries $33,597 $0 $33,597 ($20,462) $13,135

61200 48211 ERAP 2 ‐ Health Insurance $2,000 $0 $2,000 ($1,328) $672

Revenue

61200 32110 ERAP 2 ‐ Federal Operating Grants ($136,526) $0 ($136,526) ($19,743) ($156,269)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042J

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 61200 ERAP 2

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budget to reflect actual FY23 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

72500 Steve Schultz

0401 River Bluff

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

72500 43190 Daily Services ‐ Other Prof Services $2,329,370 $0 $2,329,370 $2,039,045 $4,368,415

Revenue

$2,039,045

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Adjustment to advance from the general fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budget to reflect actual FY23 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $2,039,045

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042K

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 72500 Daily Services



11/16/2023

79000 Steve Schultz

0430 Water Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

79000 41110 Water Billings ‐ Regular Salaries $19,000 $0 $19,000 ($3,965) $15,035

79000 43620 Water Billings ‐ Electricity $16,500 $0 $16,500 $2,719 $19,219

79000 46330 Water Billings ‐ Roadway $0 $0 $0 $751 $751

79000 48211 Water Billings ‐ Health Insurance $1,000 $0 $1,000 $2,776 $3,776

Revenue

79000 34342 Water Billings ‐ Service Fee ($50,000) $0 ($50,000) ($2,281) ($52,281)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042L

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 79000 Water Billings

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budget to reflect actual FY23 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

82100 Steve Schultz

0501 Central Services

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

82100 42390 Copiers ‐ Other Repair & Maint $105,000 $0 $105,000 $2,172 $107,172

82100 46500 Copiers ‐ Ofc Furniture & Equip $60,000 $0 $60,000 $8,210 $68,210

Revenue

82100 34116 Copiers ‐ Outside Agency Revenue $0 $0 $0 ($4,865) ($4,865)

82100 34110 Copiers ‐ General County Svcs ($262,587) $0 ($262,587) ($5,517) ($268,104)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042M

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 82100 Copiers

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budget to reflect actual FY23 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



  

 

 

Ordinance Executive Summary 
 

 
Prepared By:                Steve Schultz  

Committee:                Finance Committee 

Committee Date:           November 16, 2023  

Ordinance Title:             Ordinance for a Budget Amendment Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards                   
Board (ILETSB) Grant Award  

Board Meeting Date:    November 30, 2023  

 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  No                                                                             Appropriation Amount:   $90,400 

If not, explain funding source:  Grant award 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 60200 / Various / 02064 ILETSB 

FY2024 Budget Impact: $90,400 
 
Background Information:  New grant awarded by the Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board.  
The purpose of this award is to provide financial assistance to units of local government, public institutions 
of higher education, and qualified nonprofit entities for the purpose of hiring and retaining law 
enforcement officers.        

      

Recommendation:    Finance Department recommends approval 
        
Contract/Agreement:   Not applicable 
 
Legal Review:   Not applicable 
 
Follow-Up:   Not applicable 
 



1 
 

2024 Fiscal Year Finance:    November 16, 2023 
 Lay Over: November 30, 2023 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: December 14, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2023 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
Ordinance for a Budget Amendment Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards  

Board (ILETSB) Grant Award 
 

WHEREAS, New grant awarded by the Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board.  
The purpose of this award is to provide financial assistance to units of local government, public 
institutions of higher education, and qualified nonprofit entities for the purpose of hiring and 
retaining law enforcement officers. 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 at its September 28, 2023 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #24-002 ILETSB Grant Award 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 
 



11/16/2023
Sheriff Grants Fund Steve Schultz

0302 Sheriff Grants Fund

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

60200 41110 02064 ILETSB Grant - Salaries $0 $0 $0 $6,400 $6,400
60200 43190 02064 ILETSB Grant - Other Prof Svcs $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $42,000
60200 43410 02064 ILETSB Grant - Printing $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $2,000
60200 43420 02064 ILETSB Grant - Advertising $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $40,000

Revenue
60200 32110 02064 ILETSB Grant - State Grant $0 $0 $0 (90,400)                  ($90,400)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Grant award

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $90,400

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

New grant awarded by the Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board.  The purpose of this award is to provide financial 
assistance to units of local government, public institutions of higher education, and qualified nonprofit entities for the purpose of hiring 
and retaining law enforcement officers.

2024-002

60200 Sheriff Grants FundDEPT. BUDGET NO.

2024
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Finance Committee 
Committee Date: November 16, 2023 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Approving Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding 

Allocation Policy 
County Code:      Not Applicable  
Board Meeting Date: November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? N/A     Appropriation Amount:   N/A 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A    Budget Impact: N/A  

Background Information: Nationwide settlements continue to resolve Opioid litigation brought by states 
and local political subdivisions against pharmaceutical distributors and manufacturers. The ensuing 
lawsuits may result in settlements for Winnebago County, Illinois. This policy is set forth to define how 
Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding shall be allocated and follows the directives set forth by 
the State of Illinois, as may be amended from time to time. 

Recommendation: Administration concurs 
Contract/Agreement: Not Applicable 
Legal Review:    Yes  
Follow-Up: Not Applicable 



1 

   County Board Meeting: November 30, 2023 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2023 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING WINNEBAGO COUNTY OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDING 
ALLOCATION POLICY 

WHEREAS, on January 11, 2018, the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
adopted a Resolution declaring that the unlawful distribution of prescription-controlled substances 
created a public nuisance and serious public health and safety crisis for the citizens of Winnebago 
County, Illinois initiating and authorizing outside counsel to pursue remedies; and 

WHEREAS, as settlements are reached to resolve opioid litigation and funding is allocated to 
the State of Illinois and local governments, including Winnebago County, Illinois, the County desires 
to enact a policy to define how said funding shall be allocated; and  

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
has reviewed the proposed policy and after having conferred with County Administration, 
recommends its approval by the County Board.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that 
the Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding Allocation Policy presented by County Administration 
is hereby approved, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Attachment B.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Board Chairman and all County department heads. 



2 
 

                                                                                                     Respectfully Submitted, 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

   
 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
 
 
 

  

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR  
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR  
 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



ATTACHMENT A



































































































 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDING 

ALLOCATION POLICY 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Winnebago County Resolution 2018 CR 014 declared that the unlawful distribution of prescription 
controlled substances created a public nuisance and a serious public health and safety crisis for the 
citizens of Winnebago County, Illinois. It further stated the County Board has expended, is 
expending, and will continue to expend in the future, County public funds to respond to the serious 
public health and safety crisis involving opioid abuse and addiction, morbidity, and mortality 
associated with that abuse in the County of Winnebago, Illinois.  
 
Nationwide settlements continue to resolve Opioid litigation brought by states and local political 
subdivisions against pharmaceutical distributors and manufacturers. The ensuing lawsuits may 
result in settlements for Winnebago County, Illinois. This policy is set forth to define how future 
Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding shall be allocated. Note that prior to any potential 
disbursements: 
 

• The Finance Committee will be notified upon receipt of any settlement funds.  
• All applications will be brought forward to Finance Committee and County Board for 

discussion prior to Committee approval.  
 

ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
Eligible applicants include Winnebago County departments whose budgets were affected and 
continue to be affected by the opioid crisis and who may have allowable expenses per Exhibit B 
[may be subject to change based on agreements and/or exhibits for each potential settlement]: 
 

• Winnebago County Administration 
• Winnebago County Coroner’s Office 
• Winnebago County Health Department 
• Winnebago County Public Defender’s Office 
• Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office / Jail 
• Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office 
• River Bluff Nursing Home  
• 17th Judicial Circuit Court 

 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

ALLOWABLE USES / COSTS  
Funds are obligated to support opioid remediation through uses included in the list of Approved 
Abatement Programs attached as Exhibit B.  Allowable costs may be subject to change based on 
agreements and/or exhibits for each potential settlement. Allowable Costs include: 
 

• Salary 
• Fringe 
• Travel 
• Supplies 
• Up to 10 percent for direct costs associated with administering the award. 
• Indirect Costs 

 
SUB AWARDS 
• To manage administrative costs, if a sub-recipient is requested, the suggested minimum is one 

subaward per $100,000.00.  
• Funded County department is responsible for ensuring procedures are followed per the 

Winnebago County Budget Policy and Winnebago County sub-recipient monitoring 
procedures. This includes but is not limited to: 

o Developing fiscal and data reporting using approved templates.  
o Ensuring sub-recipient fiscal and data reports are complete and accurate prior to 

submission to County Administration.  
 
 
 

 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Lafakeria S. Vaughn 
Committee:  Finance Committee 
Committee Date: November 16, 2023 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State’s Attorneys 

Appellate Prosecutor’s Program 
County Code:      Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date: November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes  Appropriation Amount:   $42,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:  None 

Background Information: The Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor was created 
to provide services to the State’s Attorneys in Counties containing fewer than 3,000,000 
inhabitants. The funding for the Office is funded two-thirds by the State and one-third from the 
respective Counties that allocate funds. The Office provides various services to the State’s 
Attorney’s Office including filing of appellate briefs for appeals, assistance in the prosecution of 
certain drug cases, labor negotiations, and tax objections. These services are based on the 
request of the State’s Attorney. The allocated amount for the County is $42,000 and is budgeted 
each year in the State’s Attorney’s budget.  

Recommendation: Continue to fund the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor’s Program 

Contract/Agreement: Invoice from the State for $42,000 

Legal Review:  Request for funding submitted from the State’s Attorney’s Office  

Follow-Up: N/A 



Sponsored By:  John Butitta                                                  County Board Meeting: November 30, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2023 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING COUNTY CONTRIBUTION FOR STATE’S 
ATTORNEYS APPELLATE PROSECUTOR’S PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor was created to 
provide services to State’s Attorneys in Counties containing fewer than 3,000,000 inhabitants; 
and 

WHEREAS, the powers and duties of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 
Prosecutor are defined and enumerated in the “State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor’s Act,” 
725 ILCS 210/1, et seq. as amended; and 

WHEREAS,  the Illinois General Assembly appropriates monies for the ordinary and 
contingent expenses of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor, one-third from 
the State’s Appellate Prosecutor’s County Fund and two-thirds from the General Revenue Fund, 
provided that such funding receives approval and support from respective Counties eligible to 
apply; and 

WHEREAS, the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor shall administer 
the operation of the appellate offices so as to insure that all participating State’s Attorneys 
continue to have final authority in preparation, filing, and arguing of all appellate briefs and any 
trial assistance. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, in regular session, this 30th day of November, 2023, does hereby support the 
continued operation of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor and designates 
the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutors as its Agent to administer the operation 
of the appellate offices and process said appellate court cases for the County. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attorneys employed by the Office of the 
State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor are hereby authorized to act as Assistant State’s 
Attorneys on behalf of the State’s Attorney of the County of Winnebago in the appeal of all 
cases when requested to do so by the State’s Attorney, and with the advice and consent of the 
State’s Attorney prepare, file, and argue appellate briefs for those cases; and also, as may be 



requested by the State’s Attorney, to assist in the prosecution of cases under the Illinois 
Controlled Substances Act, the Cannabis Control Act, the Drug Asset Forfeiture Procedure Act 
and the Narcotics Profit Forfeiture Act. Such attorneys are further authorized to assist the State’s 
Attorney in the State’s Attorneys duties under the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, including 
negotiations thereunder, as well as in the trial and appeal of tax objections. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 
Prosecutor will offer Continuing Legal Education training programs to the State’s Attorneys and 
Assistant State’s Attorneys.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attorneys employed by the Office of the 
State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor may also assist the States Attorney of the County of 
Winnebago in the discharge of the State’s Attorneys duties in the prosecution and trial of other 
cases, and may act as Special Prosecutor if duly appointed to do so by a court having 
jurisdiction. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 
Prosecutor is duly appointed to act as Special Prosecutor in the County of Winnebago by a court 
having jurisdiction to do so, the County will provide reasonable and necessary clerical and 
administrative support on an as-needed basis. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois hereby agrees to participate in the service program of the Office of the State’s Attorneys 
Appellate Prosecutor for Fiscal Year 2024, commencing December 1, 2023 and ending 
November 30, 2024, by hereby appropriating the sum of $42,000.00 as consideration for the 
express purpose of providing a portion of the funds required for financing the operation of the 
Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor and agrees to deliver the same to the Office 
of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor on request during the Fiscal Year 2024. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
State’s Attorney and to the Director of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 





 

CLOSED SESSION TO  
DISCUSS PENDING 

LITIGATION 
 
 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Year End Adjustments
	Ordinance for a Budget Amendment Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standars Board (ILETSB) Grant Award
	Resolution Approving Winn. Cty. Opioid Settlement Funding Allocation Policy
	Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor's Program
	Closed Session to Discuss Pending Litigation



